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BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION A6 15 2683

OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI SSMISBO. .
rvice 6°"”"% s"sclon
In the matter of the Application by Aquila, Inc. for )
authority to assign, transfer, mortgage or encumber ) Case No. EF-2003-0465

its franchise, works or system. )

JOINT MOTION FOR SUMMARY DISPOSITION
AND REQUEST FOR ORAL ARGUMENT

COME NOW the Office of the Public Counsel (“Public Counsel”), the State of Missourt,
Sedalia Industrial Energy Users® Association and AG Processing Inc. (hereinafier “Joint Movants™)
and pursuant to 4 CSR 240-2.117 et. seq. file their Motion for Summary Disposition requesting that
the Commission summarily dispose of Aquila’s Application to secure its Missouri utility assets as
collateral for its $430 million Term Loan and related First Mortgage Bonds. In support of their
Motion for Summary Disposition of Aquila’s Application Joint Movants state as follows:

l. On April 30, 2003 Aquila, Inc. filed its Verified Application pursuant to Section
393.180 and 393.190.1 RSMo 2000 and 4 CSR 240-2.060(1) and (7) seeking Commission approval
to encumber its Missouri assets in accordance with the Term Loan (attached as Appendix 3 to its
Verified Application); the Indenture (attached as Appendix 4 to its Verified Application); and the
First Supplemental Indenture (attached as Appendix 5 to its Verified Application).

2. On July 24, 2003 this Commission tssued its Order Rescheduling Hearing setting this
matter for hearing October 20 through October 24 and October 27. Pursuant to 4 CSR 240-
2.117(1¥A) Joint Movants are filing this motion more than sixty (60) days prior to the scheduled

hearing in this matter.




UNDISPUTED FACTS

3. Aquila is a Delaware corporation with its principal office and place of business at 20
West 9" Street, Kansas City, Missouri. Aquila is authorized to conduct business in Missouri
through its Aquila Networks-MPS and Aquila Networks-L & P operating divisions. {Aquila
Verified Application { 5).

4, Aquila is an “electrical corporation,” a “gas corporation,” a “heating company” and
a “public utility” as those terms are defined in Section 386.020 RSMo. 2000. Consequently, it is
subject to the jurisdiction and supervision of the Commission as provided by law. (Aquila Verified
Application § 6).

5. On April 9, 2003, Aquila entered a new $430 million three-year Term Loan Facility
and Letter of Credit Facility (sometimes hereinafter “the Term Loan”). (Aquila Verified
Application 1 10).

6. On or about April 1, 2003 Aquila eﬁtered into a new $100 million 364 day term
loan. (Aquila Verified Application §j 10).

7. The collateral for the 364-day loan is Aquila’s equity interest in its Australian assets
(“WAPL”), first priority lien of two peaking facilities and Aquila’s equity interest in the [PP
investments and a junior lien in the Canadian collateral. (Dobson Direct p. 9, 1. 18-21).

8. The 364-day loan, its proceeds and collateral, have no bearing or impact on Aquila’s
Application except that the Independent Power Projects (“IPPs”) investments defined as collateral
may at a later date be utilized as collateral for the non-utility working capital portion of the Term
Loan. (Robertson Affidavit q 16, attached hereto as Highly Confidential Appendix A).

0. In connection with the Term Loan, Aquila issued First Mortgage Bonds Under its

Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated April 1, 2003, to Bank One Trust Company, N.A.



(Trustee (“the Indenture™) and its First Supplemental Indenture thereto dated April 9, 2003, to Bank
One Trust Company, N.A., Trustec (“the First Supplemental Indenture”). (Aquila Verified
Application ¥ 10).

10. Initially, the $430 million 3-year term loan was secured with collateral from the
Nebraska and Michigan domestic utilities, a pledge of the capital stock of the holding company of
Aquila’s Canadian utilities, and a silent 2™ lien on the equity’s interest in the holding company of
Aquila’s IPP investments, (Dobson Direct p. 9, 1. 15-18).

11.  Agquila has determined that $250 million of the $430 million Term Loan is needed
to support the ongoing working capital requirements for the domestic utility business. (Dobson
Direct p. 10, 1. 9-11; Affidavit of Ted Robertson 9 8).

12. Aquila has committed to separating the proceeds of the Term Loan and related
collateral to ensure that the utility customer and assets are not supporting the non-utility debt
requirement, i.e. Aquila has committed to having non-utility collateral cover the outstanding
collateral obligétions of the remaining $180 million non-utility portion of the $430 million Term
Loan. (Dobson Direct p. 10, 1. 21-25; Affidavit of Ted Robertson § 9).

13.  Pursuant to Section 5.13 of the Term Loan in order that the non-regulated operations
of Aquila used as collateral can be released as collateral, Aquila contracted to pursue “commercially
reasonable” efforts to encumber the assets of its domestic regulated utility companies. Section 5.13

states.

*%




%%

Empbhasis added by Joint Movants.

14.  In compliance with Section 5.13 of the Term Loan Aquila filed applications in
Colorado, Iowa, Minnesota, Kansas and Missouri seeking approval to encumber utility assets in
these various jurisdictions. (Dobson Direct p. 16, 1. 14-16).

15.  On or about July 11, 2003 the Colorado Public Utilities Commission approved a
settlement allowing Aquila to collateralize its Colorado jurisdictional utility assets. (A copy of the
Order approving the settlement and authorizing collateralization and Aquila’s press release
acknowledging approval is attached as Appendix B).

16. The fair value of Aquila’s Colorado utility assets is ** ** million. (Source:

BearingPoint, Inc. Valuation as of May 31, 2003. A copy is attached as Highly Confidential
Appendix C.).

17. The combined fair value of Aquila’s Michigan and Nebraska utility assets is **
____ **million. (BearingPoint, Inc. Valuation as of March 31, 2003. A copy is attached as Highly
Confidential Appendix D.).

18.  Based upon the collateral principles used by the lending institutions, Aquila only

needs ** ** million of utility collateral to support the $250 million of working capital



needed to operate the domestic utility business. (Dobson Direct p. 16, 1. 19-21; Affidavit of Ted
Robertson 9 10).

19. The Colorado, Michiganl and Nebraska utility assets combined provide Aquila’s
creditors with ** ___ ** million in collateral. This amount is far in excess of the ** _____ **
'_million of utility collateral Aquila needs to support its $250 million in working capital requirements
for the domestic utilities. (Affidavit of Ted Robertson g 15).

20.  Pursuant to the Term Loan agreement Aquila is not required to get approval to
collateralize all of its domestic utility property. Aquila is only required to use its commercially
reasonable efforts to do so. (Term Loan Section 5.13; Affidavit of Ted Robertson §17).

21.  Aquila has already received the $430 million in proceeds from the Term Loan.

(Affidavit of Ted Robertson 4 18).

REQUEST FOR ORAL ARGUMENT
22,  After the thirty (30) days set-out for responses in opposition {o this Motion in 4 CSR
240-2.117(C) have passed, Joint Movants request the Commission set this matter for oral argument.
WHEREFORE, Joint Movants request that the Commission grant their request for summary
disposition of Aquila’s Application and dismiss said Application and for any other relief the

Commission deems appropriate.
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that a copy of the foregoing has been faxed, mailed or hand-delivered to the
following counsel of record on this 15th day of August 2003:

Nathan Williams James C. Swearengen

Missouri Public Service Commission Brydon, Swearengen & England
P. 0. Box 360 P.O. Box 456

Jefferson City, MO 65102 ' Jefferson City, MO 65102-0456
Stuart W. Conrad Ronald Molteni

Finnegan, Conrad & Peterson Assistant Attorney General

1209 Penntower Office Center P. O. Box 899

3100 Broadway Jefferson City, MO 65102

Kansas City, MO 64111

s/ Dou§?s E Micheel



BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI

In the matter of the Application by Aquila, Inc. for )
authority to assign, transfer, mortgage or encumber ) Case No. EF-2003-0465
its franchise, works or system. )

AFFIDAVIT OF TED ROBERTSON

Ted Robertson, being sworn, says:

1. My name is Ted Robertson. I am employed by the Office of the Public éomsel asa
Public Utility Accountant III. I hold a bachelors of science degree in accounting from Southwest
Missouri State University. My business address is 200 Madison Street, Suite 650, Jefferson City,
Missouri 65101. |

2, I have testified as an expert witness on accounting and other issues related to public
utilities in numerous cases before the Missouri Public Service Commission. 1 am the Public
Counsel technical expert assigned to review Aquila’s Application in the above referenced
proceeding.

3. In the course of my duties I have reviewed Aquila’s Application including the
Attachments thereto, propounded discovery and reviewed responses to Public Counsel data requests
and participated extensively in the Informal Interviews conducted in this matter July 16 through

July 18, 2003.

4. I have reviewed Joint Movants’ Motion For Summary Disposition and its
Suggestions in Support.
5. As part of its financial plan to restore its financial health, Aquila on or about April

30, 2003 Aquila, Inc. filed an Application {subsequently titled as Case No. EF-2003-0465) with the

Appendix A



Commission seeking an order, “authorizing the assignment, transfer, mortgage or encumbrance of
Aquila’s utility franchise, works or system necessary or useful in the provision of regulated
electrical, ﬁatural gas and heating company utility services to the public in Missouri in order to
secure Aquila’s financing arrangements which are used to support the Company utility operations.”
Company states that to ensure it has sufficient liquidity in the near-term, it has entered into new
debt insﬁ’uments on April 9, 2003 that, subject to regulatory approval, will be secured by a
collateral pool that will include Aquila’s United States utility assets, including its assets located in
Missouri.

6. Pursuant to certain terms of an agreement to secure $430 million three-year Term
Loan {Attached as Appendix 3 to its Application), Aquila contracted to pursue “commercially
reasonable” efforts to encumber the assets of its domestic regulated utility divisions in order to
obtain the loan. Section 5.13 of the U.S. $430,000,000 Credit Agreement among Aquila, Inc., and

Credit Suisse First Boston, dated April 9, 2003, states:

¥k

ek

Emphasis added.



7. | As required by Section 5.13 Aquila has filed requests to encumber the assets of its
domestic regulated utility companies in Colorado, Kansas, Iowa, Minnesota and Missouri.

8. Aquila has determined that $250 million of the $430 million Term Loan is needed
to support the ongoing working capital requirements for the domestic utility business.

9. Aquila has committed to separating the loan and collateral to ensure that the utility
* customers and assets are not supporting the non-utility debt requirement of $180 million. Thus,
Aquila has committed to having $180 million of non-utility collateral to cover the outstanding
obligations of the $430 million Term Loan. (MPSC data request 39, Informal Interview Transcript
pps. 581—583 and 591 attached as Schedule TR-1).

10.  In order to satisfy the coilateral agreements for $250 million of the $430 million
loan, Aquila seeks to encumber domestic utility assets with a minimum “fair value” of ** ___ **
times the $250 million (** ___ ** million). The fair value is to be determined via an appraisal
process and does not necessarily equate to rate base value. (Informal Interview Transcript pps. 569-
570 attached as Highly Confidential Schedule TR-2). However, Aquila is seeking to encumber all
the actual assets of each of its individual domestic regulated utility divisions.

11.  Because the states of Michigan and Nebraska did not have laws requiring Aquila to
seek approval from a regulatory body prior to encumbering those utility assets, those assets were
encumbered at the time of the initial transaction between Aquila and Credit Suisse First Boston.
(MPSC data request 68 attached as Highly Confidential Schedule TR-3).

12. Bearinch;int, Inc. as required by the Term Loan conducted a “fair value” appraisal
of the domestic untility assets located in Michigan and Nebraska. As a result of that “fair value™ -

appraisal BearingPoint, Inc. determined the asset value to be ** ** million.



13, On or about July 11, 2003 the Colorado Public Utilities Commission approved a
settlement allowing Aquila to encumber (collateralize) its Colorado jurisdictional utility assets.

14, BearingPoint, Inc. as required by the Term Loan conducted a “fair value” appraisal
of the Colorado jurisdictional utility assets. As a result of that “fair value” appraisal BearingPoint,
Inc. determined that asset value to be ** __ ** million.

15.  The encumbered assets “fair value” for collateral purposes for Michigan, Nebraska
and Colorado total ** ** million. Per Rick Dobson’s direct testimony and Section 5.13 of the

Term Loan that ** ____ ** million is now ** ________ ** million more collateral than Aquila needs
to support the stated $250 million working capital requirements for domestic utilities.

16.  The 364-day loan, its proceeds and collateral, have no bearing or impact on Aquila’s
Application except that Independent Power Projects (“IPPs™) investments defined as collateral may
at a later date be utilized as collateral for the non-utility working capital portion of the term loan.
(Informal Interview Transcript pps. 554 and 557 attached as Schedule TR-4).

17.  Pursuant to the Term Loan agreement Aquila 1s not required to get approval to
collateralize all of its domestic utility property. Aquila is only required to use its commercially
reasonable efforts to do so. (Informal Interview Transcript p. 565 attached as Schedule TR-5).

18.  Aquila has already received the proceeds of the Term Loan. {Informal Interyiew

Transcript p. 590 attached as Schedule TR-6).

Further Affiant sayeth not.

R

Ted Robertson, C.P.A.
Public Utility Accountant 111




Subscribed and sworn to me this _/ 5 day of August 2003,

KATHLEEN HARRISON # ' / o
Notary Public - State of Missouri | a/ZZé - /" cuo
 Gounty of Cole Kathleen Harrison
My Compmission Expires Jan. 31, 2008 Notary Public

My commission expires January 31, 2006.




AQUILA, INC. - i e
CASE NO. EF-2003-0465
DATA REQUEST NO. MPSC-39

DATE OF REQUEST: June 4, 2003

DATE RECEIVED: June 4, 2003

DATE DUE: June 24, 2(;'}03

REQUESTOR: Joan Wandel

QUESTION:

1. Wil the regulated assets in Nebraska and Michigan currently piedged as part of the

collateral for the 3-year Term Loan be considered available by the Company to secure at
jeast a portion-of the non-reguiated amount of the 3-year Term Loan since these states do
not require Comrnission approval? '

If, by chance, one or more of the state commissions gave a blanket approval to the
Company's application requesting permission to pledge the reguiated assets, would those
assets be available to secure the portion of the 3-year Term Loan identified as needed for
non-regulated working capital, ie. the $180 million portion factored up by the 1.67
conversion factor or $300.6 million? '

RESPONSE:

1.

No. It is not Aquila’s intent to use regulated assets to secure nonregulated debt as
described in Mr. Dobson's testimony. While the loan document itself does not segregate
the coliaieral requirements, Aquila has done so internally and intends to maintain
sufficient collateral for both the regulated and nonregulated requirements. Mr. Dobson’s
testimony specifically addresses this issue.

If Aquila receives approval to pledge additionzl regulated assets, then those assets
would be viewed by the lenders as collateral for the entire $430 millien loan and
therefore the interest rate could be reduced from 8.75% to 8%. However, as stated
above, Aguila intends 1o internally align regutated collateral support with regulated
working capital needs and nonregulated collateral support with nonregulated working
capital needs, |

ATTACHMENT: NA

ANSWERED BY: Mike Cole

Jo ) B

Schedule TR-1




- Associated Court Reporters

) - 18BB636-7551
1 through our commissions?_.Not trying‘to imply %
2 anything.. | | ?
3 - All I'm doing is saying;that we have %
4 'people-watching that, and they are wanting.tng
5 ‘see what kind of commitments.are goiﬁg to be %
6 - mgde.’ And it's jﬁst human nature. | ?
7 MR. ROBERTSON: Are you through? E
8 MR. EMPSON: Yes, sir. 3 .
9 MR. ROBERTSON: Okay. Don't call me ‘
10 sir. Its éounds way.téo formal. I get | %
11 called a lot worse than that. | i
12 MR. EMPSON: Didn‘thean to be negative. %
13 MR. ROBERTSON: I'll move on to just a
14 Vsimilar_éubject, but off the favorable §
15 financing aspect{ E
16 Withwregardriﬁ you take the $430 ﬁillion.i
17 5f fhe term loan, you separate it into the - %
| 18 250, you have the 180 left, can you explain
19 to me why régulated assets should be utilized |
20 to'collatéralize3a loan, specifically"f. : g
21 regarding the 180 million difference over the ;
22 250, specific to or associated with 3
23 non-regulated businesses, and why it's not a %
24 ‘ .detriment to ratepayers to do that?. %
25 MR. EMPSON: We're not asking that. And |

e
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- While we have that 180 million, we are going

- we do not have proper collateral of

'non«regulated assets to do that, we will ' !

subject here that maybe I was'completely

Page 582

T “know what‘f— we are trying to Iine up -- we
need $250 million of working capital to .
support our utility operations. We 're trying

to get sufficient assets to support that.

to maintain proper collateral Lo support the

$180 million on the non- regulated 81de If :

retire that portlon of the debt.
Eventually, that 180 is 901ng to go
away, and all we'll have left is the

£250. million' for utility purposes,

collaterallzed by utility property.

MR. ROBERTSON : Qkay. - We got into a

confused on, and I just want to clarify tﬁat
with vou based on what us just said.

As fér as the $180 million is concerned
of that 430 million term loan, you're going

to use collateral of non- regulated operatlons

for-that, to collaterallze that amount. In
the event that you sell those assets that . %
don't have collateral anymore, you're going

tc use I guessg the proceeds cf those saleg to

=
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repay that 180 down to the base of 250.
MR. EMPSON: That is correct.
'MR. ROBERTSON: That's what you're

- saying?

MR.‘EMPSON: Thét is correct. And
you'll see that in the documenté I just’gave
vou that we filed in Minnesota, because that
was:awpoiﬁt of confusion with the Department
of Commerce in Minnesota.

An element that adds to that confusion,

'I believe, Ted, is that when we're saying if

Page 583
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we want to get the réduction-in interest :
rates; we have to.basicallylovercollateralize é
‘on the utility side, put more assets in there é"
'so basically the lenders see that we have %
eﬁough-collateral to support the 430, even %
though we'll have also enough collaﬁéral to %
sﬁpport_the=180. | _%

So we'ré'going to have more collateral é
in that pool than we actually need, but our %
intent is we will have enough collateral at ?
all ﬁimes to support the 180 that isr §
non-regulated; and 1if we don't, we will {
retire that debt down to a level that we do.

MR. ROBERTSON: Let's take that a little

| Jﬁﬁmoncﬁy ~ cOman
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Associated Court Reporters -
. 1-B8B-636-755Y

yo ~ S | - | | ' PageS91A§
BT queétioﬁs in section 11, and there's not a 1 %
2 ‘lot, but do you guys want to go ahead with g
3 that or ddes Staff have a preference on hg
4 something else? %
5 | MR. BOUDREAU} Let's go fo the record %
.6 for this discussion. ' ' %
.7 | I (Off-record discussion held) i
8 MR. BOUDREAU: We're back on the record. é
9 MR. ROBERTSON: This is Ted Robertson §
10 again. , ' R %
11 | Jon was talking abouﬁ the | %
12 chlaterAIization"of the 180 million-dollar %I
‘ %3 piece of the 430-dollar. term loan being }
14 backed by noﬁ-regulated-assets for collaferal é
15 fair value. Is that requirement defined %
16 anywhere in the 430 million-dollar term loan %_
17 agreemgnt'that you have to do that? é
118 MR. EMPSON: ©No, it is noﬁ; We have %
19 committed to do that in Rick.DobSOn‘s %
20 testimony, but it is not defined that way in %
2i the term loan. . %
22 MR. ROBERTSON: And what page is that on f
23 in Rick's testimony? Do you know that 2
| 24 offhand? | |
25 MR. EMPSON: I don't.

Rolla Jefferson City Columbia
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SCHEDULE TR-2

HAS BEEN DEEMED

HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL

IN ITS ENTIRETY.



SCHEDULE TR-3
HAS BEEN DEEMED
HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL

IN ITS ENTIRETY.
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credit downgrades and reduction in its stock

Rolla’

value? | _é
MR. DOBSON: Yes. | %
MR. ROBERTSON: Okay. The next question §
1hés to do with the new 364-day bridge 1oén,‘ § 
and basically this series of questions is z
just to try to get this part of the loan or _%
this loan agreement ocut of the pidtufe %
altogether and by that, let méksay this: Ihé é
loan is not a player in the question of | %
commission- approval of collateral éxcept that %
certain collateral for this loan is also §
collateral for the 430 million-dollar term g
“loan and letter of.credit.facility? %
MR. DOBSON: Correct. | !
MR..RéBERTSON:-~And that the.bridge ﬁ—
1oan; it was borrowed by the Australian %
affiliate and it was secured by_ceftain -5
capital stock of the UtiliCorp Asia, UtiliCo *%
Canada,KMPS‘Company, and a couple IP?s? _ %
.~ MR. DOBSON: Correct. é
FMR. ROBERTSON: Okay. And can you w
explain to me as far as the IPPs are
concerned, they seem to be collateral for
both the bridge loan and the
Schedule TR-4
TR e T g b e T - R e o e - —
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Associated Court Reporters
1-888-636-7551

.
3 | | _ | régess?‘§
- 1 MR. DOBSQN: We had an interest rate %
2 swap -- are_you‘talking about the breakage? F
3 - MR. ROBERTSON: .All-you called it, you E
4 called it an interest rate swaplin your‘ z
5: respoﬁse'tqithe DR, and it didn't identify %
6 what‘that was. You said you used the-mgney, ?
f the proceeds to retire nonmregulated | )
8 uobligations.for‘two syntheticrleases and an %
9 ~interest rate swap, in addition to a %
10 non-regulated power tolling agreement. ?
11 ' . MR. DOBSON: I do recall now; What we ;
12 | did'ié we had also hedged the interest raﬁe %
}13 related to those peaker debt with an interest %
12 . rate swap. That swap was out of the money by-é
15 | . the tune of.about 17.8 million, I-think,'and %
16 we also had to pay_that off too. | | %
17 | . MR. ROBERTSON: Okay. That's great. I %
18 | just want it clarified that Ehat 364—day E
19 .bridge loan has nothing to do with the %
20 o request or applicétion that you're seeking %
21 from the commission in this state. i
22 . MR. DOBSON:. That's correct. 5
23 \ MR. ROBERTSON: Other than the IPPs have
24 ‘ some collateral‘implications.
25 ' MR. DOBSON: That's correct.

S — —
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~ Associated Court Reporters-
. 1:888-636-7551

- R : : R : L ,%é;ﬁ-%
1 | MR. DOBSON: The letter of credit “'%
2 facility is in éffect*embedded in the
3 430 million-dollar facility. What it o
4 basically"sayé is that we can posﬁ letters of é
5 .credit inside the reélm of the 430, but we. ;
6 also ha§e to post cash related to.that. So :
7 they're really one in the same. _ :
8 So the size of the facility is 430, but E
8 we can.post cash collateralized LCs out of E
10 thé facility if we choose tc do so. A %
11 MR, ROBERTSON: .Do téhe lendefs _ha'v‘é té
112 put up any more moneys to fund that letter ofV%
;13 credit facility? _ _7 %
14 MR.. DOBSON: No, they don't. 7 g
15 MR. ROBERTSON: The collateralization of'é
16 the five states, I guéss; five domestic é
17 states, is it'ygur opinion that the lenders %
18 of the term loan have required you to %
19 collateralize those asSets in order to get |
20 the proceeds of the loan? o | :
121 _ MR.rDOBSON:_ It's my opinion -~ this is 2‘
22 ‘ Rick-Dobson -- my opinion that we have to. 5
23 make a, in my words, a good faith effort to %
24 | obtain that approval.‘ _ ?
25. | MR. ROBERTSON: Again, and I've asked ?
| Schedule TR-5 __[
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then as I am now. | | ’
MR. ROBERTSON: zOkay. Thig question I
think I asked earlier, but you can-iuét'give
me a yes Or no on it.
You already have access to the money,’
the procééds of the loan to use as working

capital, and you have access and you have it

in possession; isn't that correct?

MR. DOBSON: Correct.

MR. EMPSON: That‘is qorrect.

MR. ROBERTSON£ In your opinion, is the
Coﬁpany currently providing safe and reliable

service to the customers of the Missouri

- regulated utilities; and if you're not, can

you tell ‘me all cf the instances whereby
those reguirements have not been met?

MR. EMPSON: I bélievé we are. We're
providing safe, :éli@ble»ser?ice to our

customers.

MR. ROBERTSON: And‘you intend to do so

in the future; is that correct?
MR. EMPSON: Yes, we do.

MR. ROBERTSON: Believe it or not, I was

‘able to knock down everything else we had to

in topic seven. We still have some more

Schedule TR-6
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Aqu:la (ticker LA, exchange New Yc_J_r_k Stock Exchange) News Release - July 11,2003
Aqulla Obtains Approval from Colorado Public Utilities Commission to Collateralize Utlllty Assets

KANSAS CITY, Mo.--(BUSINESS WIRE)--July 11, 2003--Aquila, Inc. {NYSE:ILA} today announced that it
has received approval from the Colorado Public Utilities Commission to pledge its utility assets in the
state as collateral for the working capital requirements of Aquila's utility operations.

The company requested permission on May 1 to add the assets of its Colorado operations to an existing
pool of regulated and non-regulated assets currently securing a $430 million loan, the majority of which
is supporting Aquila's utility operations..

Colorado's Commission Trial Staff and Aguila entered into a settlement agreement on June 6. An
administrative law judge conducted a hearing on the settlement and issued a recommended order
approving the settlement on June 20. The recommended decision became finai today.

The decision allows Aquila to use debt secured by its assets to meet the traditional working capital
needs of a utility, including the purchase of natural gas and electricity supplies, upgrade of its
distribution systems, maintenance of power plants, and other activities that enhance Aquila's ability to .
provide safe, reliable energy service.

"We're pleased with the cutcome and with the mutual agreement that we were able to reach with the
Commission Trial Staff, which was approved by the Colorado Public Utilities Commission,” said Jon
Empson, Aquila's senior vice president of Regulatory, Legislative and Gas Supply Services. "The
settlement is in the best interests of our customeérs and Aguiia, and creates a win-win situation that

helps us deliver on our ongoing commitment to provide safe, reliable and competitively priced service
to our customers.”

As required by its loan agreements, Aquila also has requested approvat to use its utility assets in other
states to provide additional collateral for its $430 million loan. Reguests are pending in lowa,
Minnesota, Kansas and Missouri.

Securing debt with utility assets was a common practice in the 1980s and early 1990s. During the
economic boom of the mid- to late-1990s, the practice faded when the cost differential between
secured and non-secured debt was insignificant. Until the latter part of the 1980s, Aquila primarily
issued secured debt to support its utility -operations.

Stipuiations in the final Commission order include Aquila's agreement to:

—~- Use a predetermined hypothetical capital structure for future
electric or natural gas rate filings that rely on a test year
containing all or part of 2003, 2004 and 2005.

-~ Apply proceeds from the actions described in Aquila's
financial plan to reduce debt and other financial obligations
for both its non-regulated and non-domestic utility
operations, subject to cash for working capital needs.

-— Not start any new non-regulated business ventures through
2005.

~- Defer its regquest to extend the pledge of Colorado utility
assets to secure future replacement of long-term debt until Appendix B
after it finallzes similar appliications in Iowa, Kansas,

hitp://www.corporate-ir..../ir_site.zhtml?ticker=ila&script=417&layout=0&item_id=43043 (8/14/2003
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. —— Comply with various reporting reguirements designed to
determine Aquila's progress in implementing its financial plan
and provide notice of material deviations from its plan.

-- Comply with various reporting requirements relating to quality
of service for the company's natural gas and electric
operations, .

"Our objective was to provide the states with a fuli and detailed explanation of Aquila's plans to restore
financiai stability while ensuring that these steps would not have any adverse impact on our utility

customers,” said Empson. "The agresment we were able to reach with the Commission accomplishes
that.”

Based in Kansas City, Missouri, Aquila operates electricity and natural gas distribution networks serving
customers in seven states and in Canada, the United Kingdom and Australia. The company also owns
and operates power generation assets. More information is available at www.aquila.com,

CONTACT: Aquila, Inc.
Media Contacts:
Carl Petz, 816-467-3323
Media Relations, B16-467-3000
Investor Contacts:
Neala Clark, 81l6~467-3562

SOURCE: Aquila, Inc.
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Copyright ©1955-2003 Aquila, Inc. All rights reserved. - R
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BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OE THE STAYE OF COLORADO

DOCKET NO. 03A-1778EG

IN THE MATTER OF THE VERIFIED APPLICATION OF AQUILA, INC. FOR AN ORDER
AUTHORIZING APLEDGE OF, AND THE CREATION OF LIENS ON, ITS ASSETS
LOCATED IN THE STATE OF COLORADO IN ORDER TO SECURE LONG-TERM DEBT.

RECOMMENDED DECISION OF
ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE
. DALE E. ISLEY
APPROVING STIPULATION AND
SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

| ~ Msiled Date: June 20, 2003
I STATEMENT. FINDINGS, AND CONCLUSIONS
1. The captioned application. of Aquila, Inc. (Aquila), was filed with the Colorado

l?ublic-'Utilities Commission (Conmmission) on May 1, 2003. Public notice of the application was

given on May 5, 2003, when the Commission issued its Notice of Application Filed.

2. A timely intervention was filed in this proceeding by the Staff of the Colorado

Public Utilities Commission (Staff).

3. The matter was originally set for hearing on May 23, 2003, However, the heariﬁg
was subsequently rescheduled to June 17, 2003, at the request of the parties. See, Decision

No. R03-0557-1. That decision also established a procedural schedule governing this case.

4, On June 6, 2003, the parties submitted a Stipulation and Setilcment Agresment
{Stipulation) along with a Joint Motion to Approve Stipulation and Settlement Agrceh:ent, to
Vacate Remaining Procedural Dates, and to Waive Response Time (Motion). The Motion

indicated that the parties had reached an agreement settling all disputed issucs in this matter as
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more particularly set forth i the Stipulation, a copy of which Is attached to and made 2 part of

this decision.

5. On June 10, 2003, ihose portions of the Motion requesting that the Jime 17, 2003,
hearing date and the previously established procedural schedule be vacated, that any hearing to
be conducted in connection with the Stipuiation be held on June 17, 2003, and that the response

Litne 10 (he Motion be walved, were granted. ' See, Decision MNo. RO3-0632-1,

6. A hearing was held in commection with the Stipulatidn on June 17, 2003.
Appeafances were entered on behalf of Aquila and Staff by their respective counsel. Aquila “
presented tcstim;my n éupport of the Stipulation from Jon Empson, its Senior Vice Presid.ent,
Regulatory, Legislative, and Gas Supply Services, and Beth Armstrong, its Chief Financial
Officer for Domestic Utility Operations. Eric Jorgensen, one of the Commission’s ?inancial
Analysts, presented testimony in' support of the Stipulation on behalf of Staff, Exhibit 1, the
Stipulation; Exhibit 2, the pre-filed direct téstimony and exhib'its of Rick Dobson, Aquila’s
Seniﬁr Vice President and Interim Chief Financial Officer; and Exhibit 3, Mr. Empson’s pre-filed -

direct testimony and exhibits, were marked, offered, and admitted into evidence.?

7. By this application, Aquila secks a2 Commussion order authorizing a pledge of, and
the creation of liens on, its assets located in the State of Colarado in order to secure the payment
of a $430 million three-year term loan (the Loan), and to sectre future replacement debt

offerings for working capital requirements not 1o exceed $430 million? The Loan is designed -

' Mr. Dobson and M. Empson’s direct testimony and exhibits were originally filed in this marer o May |,
2003, along with the applcation.

* The Loan was closed on April 11, 2003, pursuant to authority previousiy granted by the Corgmission in
Decision No. C03-0299 in Docket No. 03A-0718EG.
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10 j:fo'vide Aquila with sufficient short-term liquidity to implement the provisions of a Debt

Redustion and Financial Plan (Financi] Plag). The Financial Plan, the specifics of which ave set
forth in Conﬁdential' Exﬁbit .1 of Mr. Dobson’s pre-filed testimony (Hearing Exhibit 2);» is
desigmed to restructure, retire, or replace existing Agquila debt by, amo::é other things, selling
certain assets and buying out certain tolling contracts. The ultitnate géal of the Finanéial Plan is
to return Aquila to a capital structuxe reflective of a gas and electric utility and to restare its debt

rating to investment grads.

8. The Loan is cumrently secured by. Aquila uiility assets located in Michigen and
Nebraska alun'g with a pledge of the capital stock of the holding company oquuila’s Canadian

utilites. However, the proceeds from any sale of Aquila’s Canadian assets must be used to repay

‘the Loan. The resulting loss of the Canadian collateral as security for the Loan would render the

ufility assets in Nﬁchigan gnd Nebraska insufficient 1o supfport the Loan under collateral
pri:{:lciples used by Aquila’s lending imstitutions. This, along with the probable need to IEpr:nish-
the Loan back to the $430 mmllion level and to post sufficient collareral for such borrowing, is
one reason for Aquila’s need to secure Colorédo utility assets (as well as these in other states) as

additional security for the Loan.*

g, In addition, Aquila believes that its utility assets should support the working

capital requirements for its utility operations. It has determined that approximately $250 million

- of the Loan 1s needed to support the ongoing working capital requirements of its domestic utility

business. See, Codfidential Exhibit 3 of Mr. Dobson’s pre-filed testimony (Hearing Exhibat 2).

The remaining $180 million supports its non-regulated businesses. Aquila is separating the Loan

* In addition to the Colorade application, Aquile has applications pending with four other states (Iowa,
Kangas, Minnesots, and Missourd) sceking approval fo pledge utility assets 70 secoure the Loan.
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and collateral into these tv#;x components' to ensure t‘t}&t its utility customers and its regulated
’ uﬁﬁty asscts are not supporting its non-utility debt requirements. This will be accomplished Ey
Aquila ho.lt_[ing the Loan fands at the corporate level and charging its subsidiaries a BBB
 investment grade utility interest rate for their use of such funds when needed for Working capital.
The difference between the investment grade ﬁﬁancmg cost and the actual ﬁost of the Loan will
be rct;*iﬁcd at tﬁc corporate Tevel. Again, this Is designed to ensure that there will be no adverse
mmpact to Aquila’s utility customers from the non-invesm_:ent graﬂe ﬁnani:ing- charges to be paid

by Aquila on the Loan.

10.  As additional support for the application, the borrowing rate on the Loan will be

reduced from 8.75 percent to 8 percent if it pledges additional utility assets as collateral.

11.  The significant terms of the Stimlaﬁon are as follows: (1) Aquila’s agre’ément to
use a hypothetical capital structure for future clectric or natural gas rate cases relying on 2 teét
year containing ali or a part of 2003, 2004, and 2003; (2) Aquila’s agreement to use the proceeds
of the actions described in the Financial Plan to reduce debt and other financial obligations on its
non-regulated and non-domestic utility operations, subject to cash working capital needs;
{(3) Aquila’s agreement not to start any new unregulated business ventures; (4) the parties’
agreement to defer Aquila’s request to extend or “roll-over” the pledge of Colotado vhility assets
to secure future replacement long-term debt offerings for working capital requirements not to
exceed $430 million untl after the disposition of similar applications in Iowa, Minnesotag
Kansas, and Misséuri;“ (3) Aquila’s agreement to comply with various reporting reguirements

designed to ascertain its progress in implementing the Financial Plan; (6) Aquile’s agreement to

* In order to accommodate the deferral of this portion of the application, Aquila requests a waiver of the
statutory deagdlines imposed by § 40-1-104(5), CR.8.
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urowic notice of material dcwatmns ftom the Financial Plan, violations or dsfmllts relatmg to -
the covenants in its indentures, the Loan, or oxders issued by other states approvmw the plcdge of
assets to secure the Loan; and (7) Aquila’s agresment to comply with various reporting: -

Tequiremments relating to the guality of its natural gas and electric utility service. ‘

12. '_[_]15 witnesses appearing at the hearing clarified certain portibns of thé
Stipulaton. Specifically, Mr. Empson clarified poténtial confusion concerning paragraéh 11 of
the Stupulation wherein the pé_rtif:s requeﬁt that a ruiing oo a portion of the applcation be
dcferred. As filed, the application requested the abﬂi}y to extend or “roll-over” the asset pledge
to be secured in connection with the Loan for the purpose of securing fisture replacement long~ _
texm debt offerings for working capital requirsments not to exceed 3430 million. Mr. Empson
explained that the “extension™ and “roll-over” terminology used in paragraph 11 refers to the
possible extension of the Loa.n.beyond its three-year term with Aquila’s current lenders, The
parties have agreed to defer the issue of whether Colorada utility 2ssets can be pledged to secure
such an “extension” or “roll-over” pending the disposition of similar applications by the other
states referred ;co n paragraph 11. Apprm;al of the Stipulation would, howcvﬁ-, allow Aquila to
pledge Colérado assets in connection with “replacement” debt not 1o exceed $430 million within
thé three-year term of the Loan. Mr Empson, explained that such a debt offering would
constitute an entirely new loan with different lenders than those issuing the Loan. Mr. Empson’s

interpretation of paragraph 11 was confirmed by the Staff's witness, Mx. Jorgensen.

13. Mz Empson also clarified that the reporting requirements contained in
paragraph 12 of the Stipulation are to continue for the full period escompassed by the Financial
Plan; that under paragraph 12.a. of the Stipulation Aquila intends to provide updates to the

Financial Plan; that under paragraph 9 of the Stipulation it is Aquila’s intent to use the proceeds

L
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of the actions described in the Financial Plan to reduce debt relating to its non-regulated and non-
_ domestic wiility operations (subject to cash working capital needs); that the term “scheduled
‘milestone” used in pa.ragraph 13.a. of the Stipulation refers t§ the dates contained in the table
shown on page 11 of the Financial Plan; that the term “expected value™ used in paragraph 13.a.
of the Stipulation refers té the est_imatcd proceeds to bé réa]ized from the szle of certain assets as
described m'thelFinancial Plap; that the reporting requirements set forth in paragraph 15.h.iii)
and iv) of the Stpulation are in additién o thqse that may be imposed by the quality of service
plaél to be developeﬁ in connection with Aguila’s Phase I electic rate case in Dock:{' No. 028-
594F; and that the “first report” reporting quuircmcnt‘ tmposed i:y paragraph 15.c. of the
Stipulation is to be provided within 60 days of Comumission approval lof the Stipulation.
Mrz. Empson also confirmed that the “separation™ of regulated utility debt/assets from non-
regulated debt/assets discussed above ensures that Aquila will not be using Colorado ratepayer

funds to subsidize its non-regulated activities in violation of § 40-3-114, CRS.

14,  Ms. Armstrong clarified the reporting requirements imposed on Aquila by
paragraph 12.2. of the Stipulation and, specifically, the manner in which the format described in

Attachment A of the Stipulation will facilitate those reporting requirements.

5. Mr. Jorgensen testified that the concems with the application previously
expressed by Staff in its intervention were fully resolved by the Stipulation. Specifically, he
indicated that Aquila’s agreement to use the hypothetical capiral structure called for‘ by the
Stipitlation and its intent to separate regulated utility debt/assets from non-regulated deblassets
for the purpose of allocating finance costs would ensure thar the requested pledge of Colorado
uulity assets would not negatively impact the rates paid by Colorade ratepayers. NWor, under

these. circumstanees, would authorizing the pledge of assets result in the use of Colorado
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* ratepayer funds to subsidize its non-regulatcd activities in violation of § 40-3-114; C.I-.LS. He

was 2150 satisfied that the i-epcrﬁng requirements impp_sed on Aquila by the Stipulation would
ensure that approval of the requested pledge of assets would not negatively impact the adequacy
and reliability of Aquila’s Colorado regulatéd utility service. He also indicated that, as a

practical roatter, the relatively short ume pertod for implernentation of the Financial Plan

-mitigated against many of the concerns raised by Staff in 1ts intervention.

16.  The parties believe that granting the application, subject to the terms of the
Stiﬁulation, is in the public interest. Having reviewed the Stipulation, the application, the pre-
filed testimony and exhibirs submitted by Aquila in this matter, and the testimony presented by
the pértics at the hearing, the undersigned agrees. Subject to the conditions contained in tﬁe
Stipulation, approval of the pledge of Agquita’s Colorado utility assets to ée_cure. the Loan will
greatly agsist Aquila’s Iefforts to implement the Financial Plan and, ultimately, should serve to
return it to a capital structure reflective of afgas and slectric niility and to restore its debt rating to
investment grade. Aquila’s agreement to use the hypotherical capiral sﬁucmré'cajlad for by the
Stipuiation and to sebarate tegulated utility debt/assets fom nﬁnﬁregulated debv/assets for the
purpose of allocating finance costs ensure that the requested pledge of Colorado uiility assets
will not negatively i-m;.Jac:t the rates paid by Colorado ratepayers. These measures will also
ensue that the requested pledge of assets will not result in the use of Colorado ratepayer funds to
subsidize Aquila’s lnon-regﬁlated activities in violation of § 40-3-114, CR.S. Finally, Aquila’s

compliance with the reporling requirements i.mpésed by the Stipulation will serve to ensure that

- the pledge of assets will not negatively impact the adequacy and reliability.of Aquila’s Colorado

regulated services, It is found and concluded, therefore, that the Stipulation is in the public

interest and should be accepted and approved.
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17.  Pursuant to § 40-6-109, CR.S,, it is recommended that the Commission zﬁier-the

foliowing order.

. ORDER
Al The Commission Orders That:
1. The Stpulation and Settlement Agreement Fled by Aquila, Inc., and the Staff of

the Public Utititics Commission oa Juue 6, 2003, is accepted and apﬁroved without modification.
The Stipulation and Settlement Agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto as Appendix A, is

incorporated into this Order as if fully set forth hereip.

2. Subject to the terms and‘ conditions set forth in the Stipulation and Settlement
Agreement, Aquila, Inc., is hereby authorized 1o pledge and create liens on its assets Iocated in
the Stats of Colorado in order to secure thc payment of 2 $430 million three-feax term loan and
to secure the fiture replacement debt offerings for working capital requirements not to exceed

$430 million.

3. Aquila, Inc., i3 hereby granted a waiver of the deadlines imposed by § 40-1-
104(5), C.R.S., with regard to the deferal of a Commissicn decision in connection with that
poftiu'n of the applicatton rcferred to in paragraph 11 of the Stipulation and Settlement

‘Agreement.

4 The parties shall comply with all the terms of the Stipulation and Scttiement

Agrecrnent.

5. The Commission shall retain jurisdiction of this proceeding and take such action

and enter orders as may appear necessary io.effectnate this Order. k
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6 This Recommended Decision shall be effective on the day it. becomes the

Decision of the Commission, if that is the case, and is entered as of the date above.

7. As provided by § 40-6-109, C.R.S_, copies of this Recommended Decision shall

be served npon the parties, who may file exceptions to it.

a) If no exdeptiozm are filed within 20 days after service or within any extended
period of time authorized, or unless the decision is stayed by the Commission upon its oﬁn
motion, the recommended decision shall become the decision of the Commission and subject to

the provisions of § 40-6-114, CRS.

| b)  If a party seeks to amend, modify, annul, or reverse basic findings of fact in its
excéptions, that party must request and pay for a transcript to be filed, or the parties may
stipulate to portions of the transeript according to the procedure stated in § 40:6~113, CRS. If
no Lranscrii:wt or stipnlation is filed, the Cornmission is bound by the facts set ont by the
administrative law judge and the parties cannot challenge these facts. This will lmit what the

Compmission can review if exceptions are filed.

8. If exceptions to this Decision aze filed, they shall not exceed 30 pages in 1eﬁgth,

unless the Commission for good cause shown permits this limit to be exceeded.
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DALEBE.ISLEY
Administrative Law Judge’
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TN THE MATTER OF THE VERIFIED APPLICATION OF AQUILA, INC., FOR AN ORDBR
AUTHORIZING A PLEDGE OF, AND THE CREATION OF LIENS ON, IT S ASSETS -
LOCATED IN THE STATE OF COLORADO IN ORDER TO SECURE LONG-TERM DERT

]

STIPULATTON AN SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT . ‘t-)y:)

Aquila, Tnc. (Aquila or the Company)r and Staff of the Colorado Public Utilities
Co;:umisé.ion (Staff), by and through their respective undersigned counsel, and for good and
valuable comidcraﬁon, enter into this Stpulation and Settlement Agreamént (Agreement) to

snpulate and to settle all disputed issues rcgaxd:nv A.quﬂa s Verified Application for an order

‘ authonmg a pledge of, and the creanon of hcn.s on, its assets located i the State of Colorado in

Agresment without hearing.

order to secuxe long-term debt. Aqmla and Staff {noﬂecﬁvcly, Parfies) respectinlly snbmit that
this Agreement is just and reasomable, that it results in a fair disposition of this docket, end that,

therefors, the Colorado Public Utilities Comumission {Comm:ssmn) should approve the

of, and the creation of liens o, its assets located in the State of Colorado in order to seouzethe o
payment of 2 $430 millien tﬁraa—yex term loan and_ to secure the fﬁtuxa replacerﬁen{ debt

offerings for working capital requirements not to cx—r;eed $430 milion. Bntaﬁng nio the $430
million term loan, and the securitization of the loan with domestic utility assets 1;cquirsd by the

lenders, was a critical first step to emsure that Aquila has sufficient liquidity in the near term, so
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that Aquila can contine to implement the final steps of Agquila’s Debt Reduction and

. Resmucturing Plan (Finascial Plan). The ultimste goal of Aquila's Fivancial Plan is to retarn the

Compauy to & capital structure reflective of & gas and electric utility and to restare its debt rating

. to investment grade. This goal requires the restructuring, retirement, or replacement of exisﬁhg

debt, Subjectto obmining permission from the various state regulatory commissions, including

this Commission, the replacement debt referenced in this Application will be secured by a

collateral nool that will include Aquila’s utility assets, incl'ﬁdjng utility assets located in

Colorado. _

2. This Application is one ofﬁve (5) @ﬁcaﬁoqs tha:t were filed concurrently by
Agquila in the States 6f éolorado, Towa, Kansas, Minnesota and Missour: to s;eéure regulatary
approval for Aguila to i&ledge all af its electric and natural gas utility assets located those states,
in order to secure the payment of the $430 million three-year term loan aﬁd 1o secure the ﬁlture
replacement debt offerings for v&ar:lcing capi%ai requirements, mot to exceed $43.0 million. AI the
present time, utility assets in Michigan and Nebraska and certain Cauad.xan utifity assets
pnmarﬂy secure the $430 mi lion- term loan. Aquila has determined internally that sbout $250

million of the $430 million is needed to support the ongoing working capital requirements for

. Aquila’s domestic utility business. However, based upon the collateral principles used by the

lending institutions, the assets in Michigan and Nebraska are not sufficient in value to supporta

$430 million loan Thcrefore Aquila had to use the Canadian inpvestment both to support the

remaining $180 million portion of the loan and to 11 the gap on the required collateral for
Agquile’s $250 million dorestic utility working capital requirement.
3. The financial institutions only required Aquila to have pledged sufficient 2ssets

total to sscure the $430 million loan. The entire $430 million is available to Aquils, and the
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credit famhty does nm “break out” portions of the loanon a state-by-state 'bas:xs In compliance

with the terms of the loan, Aguils must pledge sufficient collateral to secure the ¢credit facility up

1o the full amount of $430 miﬂiozal The determination by Aguila itself that $250 million of the

$430 million amount is required for its fiture domestic utility cash working capital needs was

based upozi Agnila’s historical and anticipated dotnestic whility working cash ne=ds. Aé[uila has

separatéd the loan and collateral ta ensure that the utility customers and asscts are ot supporting

the nop-utility debt requirements. Tt is Aquila’s intent to maintain a proper alignment of

domestic utility coltateral with Jomestic utility loan needs. and non-domestic utility amﬁ non-

regulated business collateral with their loan needs. The Cormmmnission’s approval of this

Agrectment and the Application will greatly contdbute to Aquila’s success in jmplementing its

Finamcial Flan.

4, OnMay 4, 20@3 Aquila caused a Notice concearning the filing of this Apphcatmn
to be pubhshed in The Colorado Spnngs Gzzzetz‘e and in The Pueblo Chiefiain, newspapcrs of
general or local cixculation in Aquila’s service area, That Notice indicated that the pledge of
Colorado assets was needed to secure the payment of a $430 million term loan issued by Aquila
pursuant to autﬁari’cy grented by the COmﬁiSsion on March 235, 2063 m Docket No. 03A-
071SEG by Decision No. C03-0299, to secure future rePIacemc_n;c debt offerings for working
capital requirements in amsotmis not to exceed $430 million. On May 35, 2003, the Coromission
issued its Notice that the application had been filed.

5. On May 15, 2003, Staff filed ats notice of intervention and entry of appearance.
Adquila and Staff are the only parties to this docket. Sincs the date of the filing, Steff has

conducted 2 thorough réview and investigation of the filing and the supporting testimony and



. Jun-24-03

02:37Tpm  From~AQUILA +4022212501 -T—ﬂ& P.015/031 | F-BAB

. . Appendix A
i . ) Docket No. 03A-1778EG
R o . - Dersicn No. RO3-06094
Jupe 20, 2003
~Paped of 20

exhibits. Aquila end Staff have also conducted extensive discussions énd sefflement

negotiations.

THE SETTLEMENT

6. Staffand Aquila agree that ths Application should be geanted, including the terms
and conditions to whic’:h the pari:tes agree herein. They also agree that the approval of this
Agresment i2 just, reasouable and not contrary to th; public interest. |

| 7. Agquilaand étaﬂc‘ agree that the terms of this Agreemaht should be included in the
Commission’s decision grarting this Application a5 terms and condiﬁozzs of appmvéi of the
Application and the r'elicf réquested therein. |

8. - Aquila ag:cels‘that, in future electric or natural gas rate cases relying on & test year
containing all or a part of the years 2003, 2004 and 2005, it will use a hypothetical capifal '
structure. Tn future electric raté_cases the capital structure useci in Docket No, 025-594E of
47 5% equity aud 52.5% debt will be ﬁsed. In Tuture natural gas rate cases the hypotheﬁcél
capital structure of 50% equity and 50% dsbt will be used. Aquila also agress to maintain the
debt allocation and pricing process described in the Direct Tcstimonj;: of Jon Empson, pages 2-5,
filed in this Docket. Staff and Aquila agree that the conﬁnued us& of hypothetical capital
structures and debt assignment provides Aquiia’s Colo:ﬁdo_ utility eustomers with financial
profection &unng this period of transition fhrough December 31, 2@05,

9. Aquila agrees that proceeds from the actions deseribed i the Financial Plan
sﬁould beused to reduce tﬁc debt and other outstanding ﬁna:;xcial liabilities on Aqnila’s balance
sheet relating to the nomgulated_ and nondomestic utility operations. The recording of the
receipt of proceeds from an asset saJe transaction on Aquila’s books of acoount will ocour within

seven (7) business days of month end, and after cash working ca@ital needs are met, Aquila will
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retord the retixe;ménﬁ of such debt from its boqi::s of accotmr Within seven (7')7 busgﬁass days of -
month end. Aquila will notify Staff of the application df the funds in tﬁe updates discussed
below. | h - |

10.  Aguila agrees that during the three (3) year time periad reflected in the Financial -
Plan {f.e., 2003 through 2003), Aquila will not sta.rt. any new umegulated ‘business veniures. _

11.  Aquiia and Staff agyee that Aquila has 2 critical need for long-term financial
stability so that reliable service to its Colorado customers will continue té be provided, as Aquila
has done for many years. Staff agrees to wo;k with Aguils in thé effort to ensure Aquila’s long-
term, ﬁnanclal stability as an operating wtility in Colorado. In the Application, Aquila reqﬁested
the ab1hry to extend the asset pledge granted inﬂ;is docket to secux;z future replacement long-
term debt offerings for ’Wcrki_ug cépital reciuircme:ats not to exceed $430 millian. Aquila wonld
prefer an agreement here to fhe extension or roll-over of the current $;130 million credit facility,
as long as the same terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and in the Commiséion’s
approval order m this Docket aié also adopted, However, Staff would prefer té defer any

) agreément to the extension or roll-over of the current $430 million credit facility, as long as the
same terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and in the Commissioﬁ’s approval order in
this Doclet ére aisfo adopted, nntil after the four (&) other States (Iow-a._, ¥ansas, Minnesota and ‘
Missouri) have disposed of the pending spmilar applications. Thcr:—::fnre, Staff and Aquila agree
that the Commissicm-in irs Decision approving this Agreement sﬁmﬂd rot deny the extension or
rollover relief requested in the Application. Rather, the dscision on that iséue would be defe:'md |
unti] Staff and Aqui]a jointly file a motion in this Docket requesting disposition of that issue.
Aquila agrees to advise Staff within saven (7) business days of the entry of final orders in each of

the four other state application of the disposition of those applications by the respective state

N
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céxﬁmissions. Within fo:rfqyfﬁve (45) days after Aguila advises Staff of the disposition by the

~fourth stzie-cdmmi'ssion, Staff and Aquila will file an appropriate pleading wi'th the: Coramission

reques‘mlg d:sposmon of the extersion or rollover reli of requssted in the Application. For

purposes of approval of this Paragraph No. 11, Aquila waives ﬂ:u: stamtory limit of Colo. Rcv

Stat. § 40-1-104(5) only for purposes of determining the extension or rollover relief requested in

the Applicati_oﬁ.

12.  Aguila agrees that, within fifteen (15) days after submlthng its quartérly Financial
repotts to the Securifies and Exchange Commission (SEC), Aquila will fle the following
fipancial reports m this Docket: :

a. Aquila will submit to Staff any updé.tes to the coﬁdanﬁal Figancial Plan
within Sfteen (15) dayé— of.re.lease of the updated Financial Plan. Aquila will report to
Staff the progress made in iﬁplemmtmg the actions detailed in thé Financial Plan, |
inchoding th; nse of saies proceeds to retire outstanding debt or other ﬁnanclal ]iabiﬁtieé,
thmugh the Cash Flow Statement attachment described in Paragraph 120 below.

b.  Aquile will submit areport,' mchidng Statements of Cash Flows. As part
of tﬁs Ie:port,‘ within the Siatement of Cash Flows, Aquila will itemize activities from
Invesﬁng. Activities and from Financing Activities between re:gulz‘tte.d and mregulated
items, aﬁd among unregulated items highlight and footnote the components of its

Financial Plan. To facilitate the comparison of the Financial Plan with the iternized
Statement of Cash Flows, the itemized Statement of Cash Flows shall use comparable
’ items as are used in the Financial Plan. Attachmient A, to this Agreement is the format for

this report to which Staff arid Aquila have agreed.
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13,  Aquila agree's to submit a notice report to Staff, via a confidential letter to the

02:38pm  FromAQUILA

—

Chief of Fixed Uﬁlitic"-:s, within seven (7) business days, if any of the following oceur:
| a M_atf:rial deviation ﬁ'oml'cha Pinancial Plarn. “Matedial tiaviation,” as used
herein, means either 2 scheduled milestone occurs in excess of three (3) mouths from the
scheduled date for oceurrencs, o a dollar amownt received is more than 10% less than au
expecied value.
| b. Violation br gvent of défatﬂt in (1) the covenants in Aquila’s indentures,

(2) the loan agreement for the April 9, 2003 $430 million long-term debt facility, or (3)

an order of another state uﬁ!ity regulatory comamission approving the piedgc-of Aguila's

_éssets locatca i that state to gecure the $430 million long-term debt facility. |

c. - Aquila fles for protection of a federal bankruptey court under any chapter
of the federal bankruptcy aws. '

4. In the event there is a b'ank:ﬁptcy filing, foreclosure, or Hquidation involving
Aquila's assets located in Coloradoe, or otber need to transfer Aguila’s assets located in Coiorado,-
Aquila agrees to advise.other parties to any such actions that the Colorado Public Utllities
C:.Jmmission would require the filing and approval ofan zipp]icatioﬁ to transfer Aquila’s assets
located in Colorado, pﬁrsumt 10 Rule 723-1-55 of the Cornmission’s Rules of f’rac:tice and
Procedure (4 Colo. Code Regs. 723-1-55). |

15. Aguila and Staffhave ggﬁ:ed to the following relating to the development by
Aquila of 2 Colorade natural gas guality of service plan: *

a Adgnila agrees that cimmg the three (3) year time perind reflected in the

Financial Play (i.2., 2003 through 2005), Aquila will contipue to maintain an adequate
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«quality of natural gas and electnc service provided to its énd-use customersin Coloradn
as reqmred by the standards set forth in the Colorado Public Utilities Law as to quah’fy of
. service to gas customers the Cormission’s rules regulating the service of gas utilities (4
Colo. Code Regs. 723-4) and the rules governing gaé pipeline safety (4 Colo. C&de Regs.
723-11), and as to quality of service o glectric customers the Commission’s rﬁl_as |
| regulating the service of electsic wtilities (4 Colo. Code Regs. 723-3).
b. Aquﬁa and Staff agrcé to address quality of service issues by reviewing
kicy outputs in four ways: |
i) Staff will continne 10 review Aguila’s pcrfomance and reporting
under the requirements of the rules governing gas pr.pelme safety (4 Colo.. Cade
Regs. 723-11). Unlike the electric mdustry, the natural gas industry already has a
pres;:ﬁbed set of mm:tmum requirements for eperators in areas such as céthodic
protgectiém, leak survey, leak repair, odorization, and various other opcrat'iénall and
| maiptenance activities. These standards are mandated under the Commission’s
rules governing gas pipeline safety (4 Colo. Code Reg:s-. 723—i 1) and 'I‘iﬂe 40,
Code of Federal chvlailons, Part 192, and are andited om a penodlc basis by the
enfoxcment staff of the Comm:ssmn
i) Aguila agrees to submit to Staff guarteriy reports on natural gas
wiility .éz.lality of scrvic-c-. Thess reports will be based upon the monthly internal
reports ourrently used by Aquila’s senior management to monitor guality of
- s&vice, so that Staff may also monitor the status of quality of service being

pravided by Aquila to its end-use natural gas customers in Colorado. These

! Aquila's development of & guality of service plan for its Colorado retail elecuic utitty operations was

addressed in the Sevtlemint Agreemaentin Dockr:t No, 028-594E,, Phase Tof Aquila’s electric ge:neml ais case, &
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re:pdrts will inchade such measures as default faﬁo,-meters read on time, Taster
;eaciing cﬁor Tale, émcrgency TESpOoNse g:reatér than one hour, and ﬁnplanned
outages. | | ‘

i)  Aquila agrees to submit to Staff on a quarterly basis its réports
cum:nﬂy; used by Aquila’s senior managﬁncnt t0 monitor electric quality of
sex;viée. These reports will include measures such Rs. g;neratiﬁg station base and
peak availability, generating station Starting reﬁabﬂity, CAIDL, SAIDI, SATFI,
meters read on ﬁmc, and défalﬂt ratio. | 7

) Aquila agress to provide to Staff combined gas and slectric
maasuresfor,the centralized call center fimeotion, suﬁh asj average speed of
answering telephone calls.
¢.  Aquilaggressto provide the first report for Paragraph No. 15(b)() through

{iv) above within sixty (60) days c;f the Commission’s final decision approving this
Appli:cation, and with the ﬁrst submlttal Aquila will alge inclhide three (3) vears of
historical data for each meés‘uie {when available), defininons of the measures, and the
methodoiogj for crleulating the measures, Aquﬂi also agrees 10 respond to any
qucst;ons raised by Sta;ff concerning these répoﬁs within ten (10) days of Aquiia’ s Ie.;:eipt
of the question. If Aquila needs additional time to :es.pond to a specific guestion, it will
. s;o advise Staff. Aqﬁilzi agress to prwide the reports specifisd in Parﬁgraph No. 15()(1),
Paragraph No. 15(b)(), and Paragraph No. 15(b)({v) to Staff during the three (3) year '
time period reflected in the Financial Plan. Aquila agrses to an initial meeting with Stgff

within one hundred twenty (120) days of the Commission’s final decision approving this

decision oz which is currently pending befors the Commission,
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Applicaﬁon 1o Teview and discuss the materizls provided by Aquila in accordance with
Peyagraph No. 15(b)(1), Paragraph Nao. 15{b)(ii), and Paragraph No. 15(h){iv).
d Additionaliy, Aquila end Staff agree to continue discussing the quality of
Agquila’s nahmal gas service in Colorado for the purpose of determining whether the
raview and monitoting of the foregoing pas-related outpais are sufficientto demonstrate 2
tegally adequate level of quality of natural gas service, or whether further collaborative
discussions are required to develop a formal application to approve a quality of service
" plan for Aquila’s Colorado matural gas operations. However, neither this paragraph nor -
any other provision of this Agreement shall be cunsmwd 10 pI'Ohlblt Staff from

commencing any action in the future that it deems necessary concammg Aqwla s quality

of service.

GENERAL STIPULATIONS

16. Throt;gh active préheaﬁng investigation and negotiation, the Parties have reached
thc agreement set forth h&rcm resoh‘ing- all contcsted and disputed issues in this decketin a
mamner which the Parties agfae 1s Just and reasonable and in the public interest, ’I’he Parties
further agree t.hat Teaching agreement by means of negotiation and getilement rather thax fhrough
htzganon is in the public mterast. |

17. The Parties agree io present, to suppert, and to defend this Agreement bef;bre the
Commiésinn and the couﬁs. The Parties further agree, if nece.sséry, io present testimony and
exhibits to the Commission to semﬁ‘e the approval of this Agreement.

18.  The Parties hereby ag*;rec that al] pre-filed testimony and exhibits shall be admitted

into evidence in this docket without cross-examination. This Agreement reflects compromise

and settlement of all issues raised or that could have been raised n this dacket,

10
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19.  This Agreement shall not become effective until the issuanca-qf 2 {inal
Commissicn Order approving the Agreement, which Oxgier_ does not contain é:ay modification of
the terms and conditions of this Agreement that is unacceptable to either of th_é Paﬁes- In the
event the Comrnission modifies ﬂlis'AgI.eement in'a manner unacﬁcptablc to citht;-.r Parl:y thaij
Party shall have the rigﬁt to withdraw ﬁém this Agreemsqt and proceed to hearing on the issues
that may be appropriately raise& by that Party in this docket. The withdrawing Pacty shall notify
the Commission and the Parties to this Agreement by e~-mail within three 63) business days of the

| Comm.iséion moﬁiﬁcaﬁon that the Party 1s withdrawing from the Agrecment and that the Party.is

~ ready to proceed to heanng; the-e-mail notiée shall designate the precise issue or issues on which
the Party desires to liroce.edto h.earing (Hearing Notice). | |

120, Withig three (3) business days of thé date of the Hearing ﬁoﬁcc from the

withdrawing Party, the Parties shall confer to arrive at a comprehensive list of issues that shall
proceed to h'e‘an'ng and a list of issues thét remnain settleci as a resuit of the ﬁrst P@’s '
withdrawal from this Agreement. 'Within five (5) business days of the date of the Hearing
Natice, the Part'u-as shall'ﬁle with. the Commission a formal notice containing the list of issues

| that shall proceed to hearing and ﬂ;_losa issﬁes that remain settled and a proposed procedural
scheduls for the ﬁhng of answcr. aﬁd rebuttal testimony and exhibits and proposed hcaﬂné dates.
Hearing shall be schcdtﬂed'on all of the issues designated in the formal notice filed with the
Commission 25 soon as practicable.

21.  Inthe event that this Agresment is not approved, or is approved with conditions
‘that are unacceptable to any Party who subséquenﬂy withdraws, the negotations or discussions
undertaken in conjunction with the Agreszaent shall not be admissible into svidence in this o

any other proceeding, except'as may be necessary in any procesding to enforce this Agreement.

11
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22.  Approval by the Commﬁsion of this Aé;recmen; shall constitate a determination
_ tﬁat the Agresment represents a just, equitable and reasonable resol}ltioﬁ of all issues that were
 contested, or could have been contested, among the Parties in this proceeding.

23, The Parties specifically agree and understand that this Agreement represcats
negotiated seitlement in the public interest with respect to the {raﬁous iszues pres énted by this ‘
Daocket, for the sole purpose of the settiement of the matters ag,rcéd to th:.s Agyeement. No
Party or person shall be deemed to have app:ovcd, accepted, agreed to, or con'sented to any
concept, theory or principle underlying or supposed to underlis any of the mafters provided for m
this Agresment, other than ag specifically provid:edlfor herein. Notvﬁthstaﬁd}ﬁg the resojution of

' the issues get forth in this Agfeemen’;,- nomne of the regulatory principles hereiﬁ contgiﬁad shall be
deemed by the Parties to constitute a settled practice or precédent m any fuhre proceeding,
except as otherwise specifically provided in Paragraph Nos. § through 15 of this Agrccmem;.

' 24.  This Agreement may be executed ih counterparts and by fapsimilf: copies of |
signatures, all of which when taken to gethen: shall constitute the entite Agraement with respect to

the issues addressed by this Agreement.

. CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated above, the Parties respectfully request that the Comrmission
enter an ordér approving this Sﬁpuiation and Settlement Agreement finding and concluding that
the Commission’s approval of this Stipulation and Settlement Agreement Tepresents a fair, just,

and reasenable resolution of all disputed issues and all issues that conld have been raised in this

Docket.

12
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Jon R. Empson Eric Jorgerfen 2
1815 Capitol Avenue : - 1580 Logan Strest, Office Level 2
Omaha, NE 68102 Denver, CO 80203
Approved as to form: ‘ Approved as to form:
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PITCHFORD & GORDON, CHARTERED
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This is to certify fhat T have duly served the witkin STPULATION AND

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT upon all parties berein by depositing copies of same in the

Upited States mmﬁxst class postage prepaid, or as otherwise indicated, at Danvef,

Célorado, this 1 { 2+D day of June 2003, addressed as follows:

Qieven H Denman, Esq.

ABEL, BAND, RUSSELL, COLLIER,
PITCHFORD & GORDON, CHARTERED

240 South Pineapple Avenue
Post Office Box 49948
Sarasota, FL. 34230-6948

**Tric Jorgensen _

Public Utilities Cormmission

1580 Logan Sireet, OL-2

Denver, CO 80203

BY INTERDEPARTMENTAL MAIL

“**Wendsll Winger
‘Public Ulthities Cormmission

1580 Logan Sirest, OL-2
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BY INTERDEPARTMENTAL MAJI,

. **(3gri Saptos-Rach

Dyblic Utilities Commmmon
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Jon Ewgpson

Senior Vice President
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1815 Capital Avenue
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**Randy Gamoufte
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1580 Lopgan Street, QOL-2

Denver, CO 80203 ‘
BY H\I’I'ERDEPARTMENTAL MAIL

**] arry Shiao

Publhic Utiliies Commission

1580 Logan Street, OL-2

Denver, CO 80203 .
BY INTERDEPARTMENTAL MATL

Wendie Allstot

Advigory Staff . :
Public Utilities Commsaon
1580 Logan Street, OL-2
Denver, CO 80203

- BY NTERDEPARTI\ENI‘AL MATL
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- Advisory Staff
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Robert Bergman

Advisory Staff

Public Utilities Commission
1580 Logan Street, OL-2
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Frank Shafer

Advisory Staff

Public Utihtics Commissiol,

1580 Logan Street, QL-2
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’ Aguita Ine.
Cashfiow Statement
Quarter Ended-March 31, 2003
: Other Nof- Consolidated
{doliate in thousands) .8, Utilities Regulated '} Aquilalne.
Une #|Cashflow from Operations
1 [ Netincoma i
2 1 Adjustments to regonglle et incoms (lss) o npl caskr
3 Depreciation & amortization expense
4 Rastrugiurg charges
5 Impairments & Other Chargaes
(] Cash pald on impalmaents & other chig.
7 Net cha. price risk mam
[ Defarred texas & iNvestment tax credits i
-8 Equity in eam. of inve i
10 | Dividanda & fees from investments
44 1C i ie 5 fab,
12 JA/R & AP, net ,
13 |Rastrigied eash |
14 |inventory & Sugplies {
15 |Prepayments & Dther .
1R lAceruad & Othar aurrent feb
17 Deferred Credits
18 |Deferrsd Ctimmes & Other
1§ |Customerfunds on deposit
20 |Funds on deposit
21 |Other 1
22 - [Total Cashflow From Dperations
2% 8
. 24 [Cashflowfrom inyesting
26 |Addiffens w Uity Flant
26 {Merchant Capitz! Expenditures
27 |Cash recelved on sale of aszels [
28 [Othar
28 {Total Cashflow From investing
30
31 _(Eashfiow From Financing
32 |Issuance of comman Stock
- 33 |lssusanee of LTD
34 |Retrement af LTD
85  iShortamm bomowings
36 |N2t ohg It long-term gas contratts i
37 |(Othar
38 |Tatal Cashilow Fram Financing
33
40 (Ine (Bex) in Cash Equiv
41 |Cash-Begin-{Decomber) -
42 {Cesh-Ending
Footnotesn:

]

See detall explanation of bolded line itarms on the *Detsil Infa™ worksheet.
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! "
4 Other Non-
Regulated
"line g .
25 |Canats ufiifty capital expenditures
o5 Capacity Sarvices {MEP) caprtal expendltures (iner plant canstructlnn
commlitrnents)
Cash receivad oy sale of assets:
1 U8, Netwarks—Sale of ST
Capachy Services—Cash rec o sale of AQP rerorded a5 AR at year end
Wholesale Services—Cash received on sale of ARCC classrﬁed as restricted ca:sh at
yaar end
Whelesale Services~Cash received on sale of AECC held as sscrow at year end
Quante Services-Cash received o sale of remaining Quanta shares
27 | Total Other Non-Regulated Cash received on sale of assets
Total Cash raceived on sale of assets
Retirament of LTD:
Capatily Services:
Racnon Crgek
Gogse Creek
Total .
less: non cash adl~cash colisteral used to pay down debt (cash outfiow in {nVEstxng
uctivity when posted earfier In year)
Total Capacgily services
‘ 1
Canada
Australiz
Comporais
UCS
- [Wholesals
34 [Total Other Non-Reguiated Retired LTD ]
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